
IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 1 of 12 

 

Alaska Intertie Management Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, January 16, 2014 

Anchorage, Alaska 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Brad Evans called the meeting of the Alaska Intertie Management Committee to order on 

January 16, 2014 at 9:00 a.m.  A quorum was established. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Members present:  Bradley Evans - Chugach Electric (CEA); Dan Bishop - Golden Valley 

Electric Association (GVEA); Joe Griffith - Matanuska Electric Association (MEA); Jeff Warner  

- Anchorage Municipal Light & Power(ML&P); and Gene Therriault – Alaska Energy Authority 

(AEA). 

 

3. PUBLIC ROLL CALL 

 

Public present in Anchorage:  Louis Agi -Anchorage Municipal Light & Power (ML&P); Brian 

Bjorkquist (Department of Law); Brian Hickey, Mark Johnson and Paul Risse (CEA); Mike 

Wright (GVEA ); Bernie Smith (Regulatory Commission of Alaska); Bob Day - Homer Electric 

Association (HEA ); John Foutz (City of Seward); Kirk Warren, Teri Webster (AEA); Henri 

Dale (Alaska Energy Authority consultant);  Kirk Gibson (McDowell Rackner & Gibson PC); 

Sunny Morrison and Miranda Studstill (Accu-Type Depositions).  

 

4. AGENDA COMMENTS/MOTION FOR APPROVAL 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Therriault made a motion to approve the agenda.  Motion seconded by Mr. 

Warner.  The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

5. PRIOR MINUTES - November 1, 2013; November 12, 2013 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Therriault made a motion to table the approval of the prior minutes 

November 1, 2013 and November 12, 2013, until the next meeting.  Motion seconded by Mr. 

Warner.  The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

There were no public comments. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

7A. Organizational structure  

 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 2 of 12 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve the organizational structure as 

proposed in the December 2013 meeting.  Motion seconded by Mr. Therriault.   

 

Mr. Bishop noted he does not have the diagram.  Chair Evans advised a hard copy of the diagram 

was distributed to all participants at the last meeting.  Chair Evans requested Mr. Hickey to 

locate an electronic version of the wire diagram and additional documentation needed.   

 

Mr. Therriault asked if this item should be tabled again.  Chair Evans said tabling this again 

would corrupt the filing.  The organizational structure needs to move forward and Committee 

members have had over a month to review it. Chair Evans advised this is an attachment in the 

filing.  He noted this item may need to be tabled until later in the meeting when the paperwork is 

complete. 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Therriault made a motion to table Item 7A. until a time later in the 

meeting.  Motion seconded by Mr. Warner.  The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

7B. Expenses allocation methodology for non-asset costs  

 

Chair Evans asked if GVEA is ready to address this item.  Mr. Bishop stated Mr. Borgeson is not 

ready to come forward with an expense allocation proposal.  He needs to review it further with 

AEA.   

 

Mr. Therriault commented AEA accounting staff reviewed the process and he believes the 

budgeting has been fairly steady over the past couple of years.  AEA views this to be a relatively 

modest amount of money that gets charged.  Chair Evans agreed.  Mr. Therriault noted AEA is 

interested in entertaining different ways of budgeting for the services that AEA provides.  He 

noted AEA has not had the opportunity to meet again with Mr. Borgeson to discuss any of his 

ideas. 

 

Mr. Gibson advised the past is not a predictor of the future concerning the expense allocation 

methodology for non-asset costs because there are many other issues GVEA would like to move 

over to non-asset costs, including compliance issues or administrative sanctions.  Mr. Gibson 

suspects the costs will increase over time and the past might not be a good indicator. 

 

Chair Evans advised he is going to move past Item 7B. because GVEA is not ready to present.  

There was no objection.  Chair Evans requested Mr. Bishop inform Mr. Borgeson the Committee 

past over this issue and expects to hear a proposal between now and the next meeting from Mr. 

Borgeson. 

 

7C. Regulatory filings of Reliability Standards  

 

Chair Evans advised there has already been a motion to file regarding this item.  This is the last 

and final opportunity for the Committee to give input about the letters and information being 

provided to the RCA regarding reliability standards, operating compact and attendant rules and 

regulations.  Chair Evans requested Mr. Gibson summarize the activities. 

 

Mr. Gibson reported the informational final draft letter which came out of Intertie Management 

Committee (IMC) Resolution 13-3 has been given to the Committee.  Mr. Gibson noted he has 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 3 of 12 

 

been working with Chair Evans, his staff and Mr. Bjorkquist on this letter.  Mr. Gibson asked 

Committee members to review the letter and provide any desired changes and comments as soon 

as practicable and no later than early next week. 

 

Mr. Gibson presented the Committee a transmittal letter which focused on Intertie Operating 

Committee (IOC) events leading to the filing of the Railbelt Operating Reliability Standards for 

their own systems.  Attached was a special contract that will be filed and is entitled the Alaska 

Railbelt Utility Operating Reliability Standards Compact.  Mr. Gibson stated he chose the word 

"compact" in the name because compacts are usually for areas of mutual concern.  He noted that 

is not necessarily Committee business, but it is an adjunct from the informational letter that is 

being provided by the IMC. 

 

Mr. Gibson advised the IMC voted on the informational letter and it is in its final stages.  The 

letter is ready for Chair Evans to send with a copy of the operating and reliability standards that 

have been adopted for the intertie.  Mr. Gibson advised no vote is required. 

 

Chair Evans requested clarification on what he needs to complete for the compact.  Mr. Gibson 

explained the compact is an individual utility matter for each of the four jurisdictional utilities.  

Mr. Gibson offered this as a method to accomplish the task and he will contact the individual 

utilities regarding the compact. 

 

Chair Evans asked if a resolution is needed for the compact.  Mr. Gibson stated no resolution is 

needed because it is not directly related to the Committee.  It is an issue for the jurisdictional 

utilities. 

 

Mr. Therriault commented AEA appreciates knowing the utilities are going to take that action 

and agreed it is not an action for the IMC. 

 

Chair Evans asked if a meeting outside of the IMC could be held regarding the compact.  Mr. 

Gibson agreed. 

 

Mr. Gibson noted discussions were held with Bernie Smith at the RCA regarding the best way to 

approach the RCA on this issue.  This is the proposed method based on those discussions. 

 

Chair Evans asked if Mr. Therriault needed time to talk with Mr. Bjorkquist and noted this will 

not be filed this afternoon.  Mr. Therriault believes he will have time to talk with Mr. Bjorkquist.  

He stated the letter looks like a fair representation of the history leading up to the document to be 

filed. 

 

Chair Evans stated procedurally, he will rely on counsel that if there are any substantial changes 

between now and the filing, the changes should come back before the Committee for agreement.   

 

 

Mr. Bishop noted the IMC is pushing this document forward and asked if that is counter to 

another matter in front of the RCA regarding non-jurisdictional issues.  Mr. Gibson advised the 

filing being made by the IMC is just for informational purposes.  The compact and the 

jurisdictional filing is an individual decision by the utilities, which must be reviewed and 

included into the tariff that the utilities are going to follow these standards.  Those filings should 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 4 of 12 

 

follow shortly thereafter.  IMC is well aware it is not regulated, but is providing information to 

the RCA.  Mr. Bishop asked which document needs to have comments in by early next week.  

Chair Evans noted the comments are due on the informational filing document.   

 

Chair Evans stated no action item is needed on this issue because there was no substantial change 

from the original resolution. 

 

7A. Organizational structure  

 

Chair Evans noted Item 7A. will now be addressed.  The Committee has been provided with a 

wire diagram for the organizational structure of the IMC and the second document gives a brief 

description of the framework for each one of those subcommittees or committees.  He reported 

this is the same information distributed at the last meeting.  The motion was placed back on the 

table. 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve Resolution 2014-01, the organizational 

structure as proposed in the December 2013 meeting.  Motion seconded by Mr. Therriault. 

 

Mr. Therriault asked if there are many new committees and subcommittees created within the 

proposed structure.  Chair Evans stated there were not a lot of new committees and 

subcommittees created and many of these were the same ones historically.  Chair Evans advised 

the intent was to formalize and identify the structure and not lose the continuity due to inactivity 

of certain committees/subcommittees.  Chair Evans believes the most active committees were the 

Dispatch Committee, who reported on system wide grid problems, for example, and the Budget 

Subcommittee.  The Tariffs and Regulatory Affairs Committee is new.  The Standards and 

Compliance Committee is new and is separated from the operators.  Chair Evans explained some 

of the proposed subcommittees were imbedded as duties for other committees.  The proposal is a 

representation based on the Committee's discussions over the last six months.  He noted there is 

not a sense of urgency to pass this motion, but it is important to have the housekeeping matters in 

order. 

 

Mr. Therriault stated his issue is with jurisdiction and ensuring the IMC maintains the correct 

jurisdiction for the proposed committees and subcommittees.  He gave the example of the 

Machines Rating Subcommittee, which he believes is a good group to have, but his concern goes 

back to the fact the IMC takes action on a particular stretch of the intertie and application of the 

reliability standards will be addressed through the utility compact, which is outside of the IMC. 

Mr. Therriault noted within the broader Railbelt distribution system, there is not an entity 

empowered to make rules for the entire system.  Mr. Therriault stated he does not want to adopt a 

subcommittee structure that suggests the IMC has power outside of its jurisdiction.  He believes 

this is a great document to take to Juneau and explain there needs to be a management structure 

to accomplish this and have authority over the entire distribution system. 

 

Chair Evans commented he does not believe creating an organizational structure within the IMC 

would empower the IMC with any authority.  He noted the organizational structure is for the 

IMC to address issues and provide input, but does not give any regulatory or enforcement 

authority.  Chair Evans stated the Machines Rating Subcommittee has been formed since the 

inception of the agreements. 

 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 5 of 12 

 

Mr. Gibson advised the organizational chart gives no authority.  The organization chart provides 

the structure to address any issues brought before the IMC.  He believes the tariffs and regulatory 

affairs really affect the intertie and assumes the intertie issues with the RCA would be addressed 

through the Tariffs and Regulatory Committee.  The first step is developing a structure to move 

forward. 

 

Mr. Therriault understands there are things beyond the 170 miles of line the IMC oversees that 

impact the 170 miles of line.  He believes it is important to have subcommittees that gather and 

provide information to the IMC.  Chair Evans noted all of the proposed committees review issues 

that affect the operation of the intertie. 

 

Mr. Gibson provided an example that it is conceivable in Talkeetna there will be a machine that 

will directly connect into the intertie and the Machines Rating Subcommittee would be utilized. 

 

Chair Evans explained there had to be this effort because the intertie connected a lot of 

generation that had never been connected before.  Information and documentation needed to be 

provided to the IOC and the original structure so they could conduct engineering studies to 

increase reliability.  He noted this chart has been the structure used and now includes some 

changes that represent modernization.  The structure is organic and subject to change to meet the 

needs of the membership. 

 

Mr. Gibson advised Article 6 of the bylaws gives comfort that all the decisions of the committees 

are subject to the approval of the actual IMC Committee. 

 

Mr. Griffith commented he does not believe the IMC needs to ask permission from Juneau to 

pass this organizational structure.  He supports the motion for approval. 

 

Chair Evans asked if Mr. Bishop received the documentation.  Mr. Bishop stated he received the 

information and it looks good to GVEA. 

 

Mr. Warner commented this structure is appropriate and is what the IMC has been following for 

many years.  He believes this is a good working group moving forward to reliably operate the 

system. 

 

Mr. Gibson stated he is concerned that the last whereas clause on the front page of Resolution 

2014-01 may be incomplete.  Chair Evans believes the last whereas clause on the front page can 

stand the way it is written.  Mr. Gibson agreed and commented it just seems odd. 

 

Chair Evans suggested adding, "therefore be it resolved, the IMC approves the organizational 

structure as distributed and the narrative briefly outlining the functional description of the 

structure."  Chair Evans asked Mr. Griffith if that suggestion was in line with what he wanted to 

say.  Mr. Griffith agreed.  Mr. Therriault agreed. 

 

A roll call vote was taken.  

 

The motion to approve Resolution 2014-01 passed unanimously. 

 

7D. Operators Report 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 6 of 12 

 

 

Asset status (Intertie and Static VAR Compensator's) 

  

Mr. Warner provided the operator’s report for the Alaska intertie.  He noted the Static VAR 

Compensator (SVC) at Healy tripped on January 11, 2014.  It was a breaker mis-operation.  Mr. 

Warner requested GVEA provide additional information to the Committee later in the meeting.  

Mr. Warner reported on January 14, 2014 there was an A-phased fault about five miles outside of 

Douglas.  The line was tested and the decision was made to leave the tie open and patrol it the 

morning of January 15, 2014.  The helicopter was unable to patrol the tie on the January 15, 

2014 because of inclement weather.  Eight miles of intertie between Towers 1 and 31 was 

patrolled by snow machine and no issues were found.  The tie closed and it continues to stay 

closed.  GVEA loaded up the tie to its current level of about 77 megawatts. 

 

The safety patrol contract is in place between HDR and the state.  HDR needs to finalize the 

contract so crews can be sent out to patrol the intertie directly.  This has not occurred yet this 

year.  The SVC unit has been installed and is online and working well.  There are a few punch 

list items to complete.  The Gold Hill tentative outage schedule is May 21, 2014 through June 6, 

2014, a 35-day outage that does not affect the intertie as far as loading.  The requested 21-day 

Healy SVC outage from July 22, 2014 through August 11, 2014 is being reviewed.  Alstrom has 

been asked to provide a work list as to why the outage was increased from 14 days to 21 days. 

 

Mr. Therriault asked if the Healy SVC outage cuts off the delivery of power to Fairbanks.  Mr. 

Warner stated the tie will need to be opened during that time.  Mr. Warner stated it is his 

understanding that GVEA would like to conduct an impact study for the SVC being offline.  He 

requested Mr. Bishop comment on this issue.  Mr. Bishop stated GVEA would like to reevaluate 

the intertie operating guidelines that were published in 1985 in light of the addition of the 

northern intertie to see if the intertie can be operated with the Healy SVC out of service and 

focus on getting results for this particular issue before the outage occurs.  He noted the increase 

of the outage from 14 days to 21 days adds a substantial cost impact to GVEA. 

 

Chair Evans asked Mr. Bishop if the Healy SVC outage will affect the schedule.  Chair Evans 

does not believe GVEA needs an exhaustive study because he believes this is an equipment 

voltage problem at Healy.  Mr. Bishop agreed and advised Mr. David Burlingame was looking 

into the issue, but has not reported back to Mr. Bishop with his report. 

 

Chair Evans stated the IMC is available to GVEA for any necessary assistance and will help as 

much as possible.  Mr. Bishop expressed his appreciation.  He emphasized the requested change 

from a 14-day outage to a 21-day outage has not yet been accepted.  Chair Evans asked who has 

not accepted the schedule change.  Mr. Warner stated the ML&P has not accepted the schedule 

change.  Chair Evans asked if the schedule change accommodates the timing needed to complete 

the voltage study.  Mr. Bishop believes the limited voltage scope study should be completed 

before outage date of July 22, 2014. 

 

System operations status (reserves, grid operation & security) 

 

Chair Evans asked if the system operations report is a report to year-end.  Mr. Warner agreed and 

noted the topic is spinning reserves.  HEA became their own balancing authority beginning 

January 1, 2014, and have obligated themselves to providing 10% of the largest unit online in the 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 7 of 12 

 

system as their spinning reserve requirement.  This does not balance out with the current 

obligations of the other utilities, which are based on the reliability standards. 

 

Mr. Warner directed the Committee's attention to the spreadsheet on the last page of his report 

showing the scenario of HEA providing 10% inclusion and also showing the scenario of HEA 

providing their inclusion per the reliability standards.  He noted there is a gap of 11 megawatts.  

Mr. Warner reported GVEA, ML&P, and CEA discussed this issue and made sure the largest 

unit is being covered by each taking on a percentage of that additional spinning reserve of that 11 

megawatts.  He stated spinning reserve is being provided on the system based on the largest 

online system unit.  Each utility's spinning reserve reports are available to view. 

 

Chair Evans asked if there were any reserve issues in the last quarter of 2013.  Mr. Warner stated 

he is not aware of any reserve issues in the last quarter. 

 

Operational Compliance conflict matters (Energy accounting, LBA standards & Others) 

 

Mr. Warner requested developing methods and structure for compliance reporting.  Chair Evans 

believes that will go along with the Compliance Committee assignments. 

 

Mr. Warner reported he received a request from Fort Knox Gold Mine for recent data indicating 

hourly loading on the Alaska intertie to see if there is any available capacity.  Mr. Warner noted 

that unless the IMC indicates otherwise to him, he will provide the requested information. 

 

Chair Evans asked for Committee comments on this request.  Mr. Griffith stated he does not 

have any problem with providing the information and believes the determination should be made 

by GVEA because it is in their service territory. 

 

Mr. Bishop agreed and noted the past history information does not determine what the future 

need for the capacity will be.  Chair Evans suggested providing guidance to the operators about 

how to handle requests for information.  He believes all the utilities should know who is 

requesting information and what kind of information is being requested.  Chair Evans asked the 

Committee if information requests should come before the IMC. 

 

Mr. Therriault commented it is a publically owned asset and does not see any justification for 

withholding any requested information.  Chair Evans agreed no information should be withheld.  

He requested clarification on the process to get the information from the asset managers and the 

operators. 

 

Mr. Therriault asked who would be the keeper of that information.  Mr. Warned noted ML&P 

has the data.  Mr. Dale believes it is appropriate for information requests to be brought to the 

IMC.  Chair Evans believes there should be a consistent formality on handling information 

requests.  He suggested operators tell any requesting party to please file a request with the IMC 

secretary for the information requests.  The IMC will then fulfill the request and maintain a 

record.  Mr. Therriault agreed.  Mr. Gibson agreed, but noted now the IMC is going to need to 

create an organizational structure to handle information requests. 

 

Chair Evans noted his concern about the cost associated with supplying the requests for 

information.  Chair Evans believes this is a hidden cost to the pool that the public needs to 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 8 of 12 

 

understand.  Mr. Gibson stated it is no different than asking for copies at any public entity.  Chair 

Evans believes the process needs to be formalized and perhaps the Budget Subcommittee can 

provide feedback on the appropriate process, especially as requests become more frequent.  Mr. 

Warner noted there is time involved in extracting the data and putting it in a readable format.  

The amount of requested information will determine how extensive and how long the request 

will take to fulfill. 

 

Mr. Bjorkquist commented many of the issues Chair Evans is raising fall under the Public 

Records Act that AEA would be operating under, including the appropriate amount to charge 

somebody asking for this type of information.  Mr. Bjorkquist stated he will work with AEA to 

address that component of this issue. 

 

Mr. Warner stated he will refer the Fort Knox Gold Mine representative to Chair Evans to fulfill 

the information request.  Chair Evans agreed.  Mr. Therriault noted he will begin advising people 

to make informational requests through the IMC. 

 

Chair Evans noted he will make an assignment to the Compliance Committee regarding the 

conflict identified by Mr. Warner 

 

7E. Engineering 

 

 i.  Status of studies 

           ii.  New studies (Possible action item) 

         

Mr. Warner noted he has been working with Mr. Hickey on these issues.  The Systems Studies 

Subcommittee (SSS) is still in the fact finding phase.  The tentative completion date is August of 

2014 and Mr. Warner noted it is going to be a struggle to meet that date.  He believes a working 

group would be the best way to move forward with this study and get more people involved who 

have the time to commit. 

 

Mr. Hickey noted there are a number of studies that have to be completed in a certain sequence 

and involve the integration of the Eklutna Generation Station (EGS) plant into the system.  Mr. 

Hickey reported the SSS discussed the idea of supervising contractors who are used as 

technicians to run power system simulation for engineering, not to provide a study, but to 

provide additional hands-on for stability runs. 

 

Chair Evans believes the task needs to be for people to be nominated to meet in the Systems 

Studies Subcommittee and dedicated to the completion of this study.  Chair Evans requested Mr. 

Warner be the interim leader and ensure the process of nominations to the subcommittee occurs 

in a timely manner.  Mr. Warner noted there is a teleconference scheduled next week and an in-

person meeting on February 3, 2014.  This issue will be addressed during those two meetings.  

Chair Evans requested a high level scope of a budget.   

 

Chair Evans requested Mr. Bishop communicate a sense of urgency for Mr. Borgeson to move 

forward on the cost allocation methodology because the budget can get a lot bigger and without 

an approved cost allocation methodology, it will remain status quo.  Mr. Bishop noted he 

understands. 

 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 9 of 12 

 

Mr. Hickey reported a work plan will be created next week and a budget will be developed from 

that.  He believes one of the utilities will go out to a few engineering companies with a scope of 

work for technician services. 

 

Chair Evans assigned the members the task to send in their correspondence to the secretary 

identifying all the subcommittee members. 

 

No action was taken on this item. 

 

 iii.  New interconnections (Possible action item) 

 

Chair Evans stated this is related to all the interconnection matters associated with EGS.  He 

believes this item is being covered in the system studies.  Mr. Hickey agreed.  Chair Evans does 

not believe there is anything to report to the IMC on this issue.  He suggested a process is created 

regarding interconnections so the Committee is made aware of what is being interconnected, 

when it is being interconnected, how it is going to be interconnected, and the results of properly 

conducted studies, all of which becomes part of the record. 

 

Mr. Gibson believes the issues need to be standardized and brought forth to the Committee, 

including a specific interconnection agreement that includes what studies are ordered and who is 

expected to pay for the studies.  Mr. Hickey advised there are interconnection agreements for 

generation and transmission in the reliability standards. 

 

Chair Evans believes Mr. Gibson was requesting an identifiable process to be followed.  Mr. 

Hickey stated there is a form in the standards.  Mr. Gibson asked if that form is being utilized.  

Mr. Hickey noted this is being handled through the Eklutna Operating Committee (EOC) and he 

believes the EOC needs to bring that to the IMC. 

 

Chair Evans asked if it would be appropriate to send correspondence to the EOC to provide more 

structure.  Mr. Hickey agreed.  Mr. Gibson agreed and noted the day will come when this 

structure is absolutely needed. 

 

Mr. Warner requested clarification if this is an EOC issue because the interconnection is going to 

occur between ML&P, Chugach, and MEA.  Chair Evans believes it is important to the IMC for 

the interconnection issue to be successful.  Chair Evans noted he is not clear if it is EOC or MEA 

who has the responsibility.  He asked Mr. Griffith to provide his opinion.  Mr. Griffith 

commented MEA has the ultimate responsibility and unfortunately, the EOC is a partnership and 

approval is needed.  He believes the technical folks are having trouble identifying the real issues 

and that is the reason he suggested sitting down with Chair Evans, Mr. Kendall and the technical 

folks to sort out the real issues.  Mr. Griffith believes the IMC is an interested party because this 

will be an alternate link across the system to Fairbanks and from Fairbanks out. 

 

Chair Evans suggested sending correspondence to both parties and noted he does not see the 

interconnection as an EOC responsibility.  The IMC is requiring the interconnection agreement 

harmonize with all of the reliability standards and the EOC may focus on other matters like 

funding. 

 



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 10 of 12 

 

Mr. Agi noted these are more than asset questions.  They are reliability questions.  Chair Evans 

agreed and believes there may be an overlap in concerns with the IMC and the EOC.  The IMC 

has the broad grid it is trying to coordinate, which is beyond the scope of the EOC.  Mr. Warner 

agreed that was the point he was trying to make. 

 

Mr. Hickey noted there is sort of a working group of the EOC that has been meeting for about a 

year.  He suggested that working group take the interconnection standards and check off the 

boxes to ensure what the EOC is doing follows those and then the EOC working group can 

submit a report to the IMC to provide assurance that the reliability standards are being 

considered in the integration of that EOC asset. 

 

Chair Evans believes the Standards Compliance Committee would play a role in interconnections 

and could coordinate with the Engineering Committee and the System Studies Subcommittee 

about different issues.  He suggested finding out where the North American Electric Reliability 

Corporation (NERC) and other industry standards assign their interconnection issues, since the 

IMC has already modeled many standards from NERC standards.  Mr. Hickey agreed this issue 

would come under the Standards Compliance Committee.  Chair Evans noted he will make that 

assignment at the end of the meeting. 

 

Mr. Gibson suggested adding examples of issues that would be within the scope of each 

committee's description.  Chair Evans supported his suggestion. 

 

Mr. Dale advised the philosophy behind the interconnection was that any new generation 

connects to a transmission line somewhere.  The local transmission owner is supposed to have a 

set of interconnection standards that are at least as restrictive as the IMC standards.  The intent 

was the transmission owner would be the primary person they coordinate with and that the IMC 

had oversight rights.  Chair Evans expressed his appreciation to Mr. Dale for that explanation. 

 

Mr. Bishop noted GVEA has researched interconnection agreements and found that system 

operators in the Lower 48 have a well-defined flow chart and schedule of timeframes for when 

information or studies are completed.  He believes those types of requirements would be helpful 

for the IMC to establish.  Chair Evans believes that is a great suggestion and will assign the 

Standards Compliance Committee the task of considering timeframes and appropriate schedules 

for addressing the lead time information. 

 

Mr. Dale believes the generation interconnect standards does have a table with the expected time 

for placing an application and getting a response and those types of issues are addressed.  Chair 

Evans thanked Mr. Dale for that input and noted the Standard Compliance Committee would 

review that table and ensure it is logistically appropriate for Alaska.  He stated it is important to 

start following these timeframes and outlines, especially as more interconnection requests come 

forward.  

 

Chair Evans expressed his appreciation for everyone's time on the effort to modernize and 

implement a dependable process. 

 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for February 11, 2014, at 9:00 am, in Anchorage, Alaska.  



IMC Meeting Minutes-January 16, 2014  Page 11 of 12 

 

 

The assignments for the Standards Compliance Committee are as follows; 1) the committee 

members will identify a member of that committee to the secretary, 2) look at all the established 

reporting processes that already exist in the industry for reporting compliance issues and matters 

and ensure the IMC has a process that is appropriate for the Railbelt, 3) address conflicts with 

nonmembers, 4) look at interconnection requirements and understand the process, develop a 

primer to provide an outline of high level activities, 5) review the expected timeframe for 

applications, responses, and other issues, 6) have a dialog about the coordination between the 

two state assets. 

 

Chair Evans suggested using these processes as a benchmark for the interconnection of EGS as 

much as is possible at this point in time.  Chair Evans commented Mr. Therriault may want to 

rethink his position on stopping at the boundary of the two state assets because there are a lot of 

things that happen between those two wires near the light of speed that show up on the other 

asset.  He does not want to do anything on the intertie that might damage the other asset or cause 

it to not function properly.  Mr. Therriault agreed. 

 

Chair Evans gave the assignments for the System Studies Subcommittee; 1) the committee 

member will identify a member of that committee to the secretary, 2) as discussed earlier, Chair 

Evans believes the Standards Compliance Committee would play a role in interconnections and 

could coordinate with the Engineering Committee and the System Studies Subcommittee about 

different issues, 3) find out where NERC and other industry standards assign their 

interconnection issues, since the IMC has already modeled many standards from NERC 

standards.   

 

Chair Evans gave the assignments for the O&D Committee; 1) continue to look at the reporting 

structure, develop a template for what is normally reported and standardize that as much as 

possible around how other industry experts report.  Chair Evans noted he has discussed this with 

Mr. Warner and Mr. Wick.  He does not mean to generate a lot of work in this area, but wants to 

make sure the reporting is good for Alaska and good for the Railbelt.  

 

Mr. Warner advised he is going to send out a meeting notice for the Dispatch Subcommittee to 

meet on January 29, 2014 and asked Chair Evans if there are any assignments for the Dispatch 

Subcommittee.  Chair Evans asked if Dispatch would follow the assignments for the O&D 

Committee.  Mr. Warner stated the Dispatch Subcommittee is separate from the O&D 

Committee.  Chair Evans asked if Dispatch would be under Dispatch and System Operations 

Committee.  Mr. Warner understood the assignment for the compliance issues were given to the 

IOC.  Chair Evans disagreed and clarified the compliance assignment was given to the 

Compliance Committee. 

 

Chair Evans stated he talked to Mr. Therriault about the state reviewing cost structure and 

information requests, and while that is not a committee effort, the assignment has been made 

through discussions.  Chair Evans asked if that assignment is clear enough to begin.  Mr. 

Therriault noted Mr. Bjorkquist will get information about what the existing state statutes might 

dictate and suggest a fee that is paid for information.  Chair Evans suggested following what is 

already required.  There may be unique circumstances which go above and beyond that.  Mr. 

Bjorkquist noted it will be key for the operators to describe the cost and keeping track of the 

cost.  Chair Evans noted it will be a double effort, but wants the initial structure reported on first. 






